BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

In the Matter of the Application of Union Electric
)

Company for a Certificate of Public Convenience
) 

and Necessity Authorizing It to Construct, Install
)

 

Own, Operate, Control, Manage and Maintain

)
Case No. EA-2005-0180
Electric Plant, as Defined in Section 386.020(14),
)

RSMo, to Provide Electric Service in a Portion of
)

New Madrid County, Missouri, as an Extension

)

of Its Existing Certificated Area.



)

Public Counsel’s Memorandum of Law in Response to

Order Directing Filing


In response to the Public Service Commission’s (Commission’s) January 4, 2005 Order Directing Filing, the Office of the Public Counsel (Public Counsel), hereby submits a Memorandum of Law, addressing the issue of whether or not a provider of energy to an “aluminum smelting facility”, as defined by Section 91.026 RSMo Supp. 2004, requires a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity, or otherwise precludes Commission review of this case.  The Public Counsel’s legal analysis confirms what the Commission has apparently already suspected – that a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity is not required in order for Union Electric Company d/b/a AmerenUE (Company) to provide electric utility service to Noranda Aluminum, Inc. (Noranda).  Moreover, the Commission does not have the jurisdiction to determine the appropriate rate by which Company may serve Noranda.  

I.
Section 91.026 RSMo Supp. 2004 controls the extent to which the Commission may review Company’s Application in this case.


In 2003, the Missouri General Assembly passed Senate Bill 555, and was signed into law by Governor Bob Holden, creating a new legal framework for the provision of electric service to customers which fit the specific definition for an “aluminum smelting facility”.  Subsection 91.026.1(1) RSMo Supp. 2003.  To Public Counsel’s knowledge, Noranda is the only electric customer in the state of Missouri fitting this definition.  


Noranda (unlike any other customer in the state of Missouri) now has the right to purchase electric power from any provider it chooses (including any municipal electric provider, any electric cooperative, any “electric corporation” regulated by the Commission, or any unregulated electric provider).  Company recognizes this new right in paragraph 14 of its Application and Motion for Expedited Treatment (Application).  Noranda has already exercised its right under this statute in switching to its current electric provider.  Noranda simply does not need regulatory approval from the Commission in order to contract with any provider, including Company.  


Section 91.026 also permanently changes the traditional responsibilities of a local electric service utility in that no such electric provider has any “obligation to serve” Noranda except as maybe established by written contract:


5.
No local electric service utility provider of electric power and energy or delivery services shall have any obligation to supply or deliver backup, peaking or emergency power to an aluminum smelting facility exercising its rights under this section, nor liability for inability or failure to provide such power, except as may be established by written contract.

Subsection 91.026.5 RSMo Supp. 2004.


Therefore, any electric service provided to an “aluminum smelting facility” (i.e., Noranda) by Company is now subject to a different legal framework than the legal framework controlling the electric service that Company may provide to any other customer in Missouri.  Neither Noranda nor Company has the ability to change this framework by asking the Commission to treat a transaction between them as a rate-regulated transaction.


It is expected that Company will argue that Section 91.026 does not apply in this particular case because Noranda is not choosing to “exercise its right” to enter into a contract for electric service pursuant to this statute at this time.  This argument is not consistent with the new statute.  Subsection 3 makes it clear that the statute applies to the provision of electric service to an “aluminum smelting facility” by any provider, even if that provider is “otherwise under Missouri regulatory jurisdiction”.    Any provision of electric service or contract for electric service between Company and Noranda is a contract “pursuant to this section [Section 91.026] for electric power and energy and delivery services” and is “not subject to the jurisdiction of the commission with regard to the determination of rates.”  Section 91.026.3 RSMo Supp. 2004.  Noranda has the right to choose its providers, but it does not have the right to change the law.


It is true that Noranda now has the opportunity to choose a different provider through contractual means; however, the new law does not give Noranda the opportunity to be served by a provider in such a way that the provider has any “obligation to serve” apart from the terms of that contractual obligation.  91.026.5 RSMo Supp. 2004.  This subsection is not optional.  Without a contract that provides some “obligation to serve”, none exists with regard to Noranda.  


In fact, Company and Noranda have entered into a proposed contract that requires an obligation to serve for only fifteen years.  The proposed contract would give Company the right to terminate service, after an initial fifteen-year term, by supplying written notice to Noranda.  This contractual term would not be permitted under the law with any other electric customer in Missouri.  This contractual term which Company negotiated with Noranda and included in its Application (allowing Company the option to terminate service to Noranda at a future date), would not be possible without Section 91.026 RSMo Supp. 2004.  Clearly, this statute controls the manner in which the Commission may review this case.  Neither Company nor Noranda may pick and choose which parts of this law they want to apply at this time.

II.
This Missouri Public Service Commission has no jurisdiction to determine the rate at which Company may serve Noranda Aluminum, Inc.  


AmerenUE’s Application is unambiguously requesting that the Commission find that the proposed tariff is prudent.  Application, subparagraph (a), p. 10.  Therefore, it cannot be disputed that AmerenUE is seeking approval of the rates for serving Noranda that are set forth in both the proposed tariff and contract.


Once it is understood that any contract to provide electric service to an “aluminum smelting facility” is controlled by Section 91.026 RSMo Supp. 2004, the lack of Commission jurisdiction over the rates charged to Noranda is explicitly clear from subsection 3.  As a consequence, it is beyond the Commission’s authority to approve tariffed rates that would apply to Noranda, as Company is requesting in this case.  Application, subparagraph (c), p. 10; Exhibit D (LTS tariff).


Commission jurisdiction either exists or does not exist.  Legal rights may be waived, but jurisdiction may not be created where it does not exist (or where it has been taken away).  The parties to a contract may not simply create jurisdiction for the Commission by entering into contract that is conditioned upon the Commission taking action outside its authority.  The Missouri Supreme Court has held that jurisdiction may not be foreclosed nor created by the terms of a contractual agreement.  Cook v. Brotherhood of Sleeping Car Porters, 309 S.W.2d 579 (Mo. Banc 1958).


The Commission cannot proceed in a manner or enter an order that is contrary to the terms of a statute and may not follow a practice which results in nullifying the express will of the Legislature.  State ex rel. Springfield Warehouse & Transfer Company v. Public Service Commission, 225 S.W.2d 792, 794 (Mo.App. 1950).  See also State ex rel. Pitcairn v. Public Service Commission, 111 S.W.2d 982 (Mo.App. 1937).  Regardless of the Commission’s ability to review this matter, it most clearly cannot approve a regulated rate for Noranda.

III.
A certificate of public convenience and necessity is not required in order for Company to serve Noranda Aluminum, Inc.

Answering the specific question posed to the parties in the January 4, 2005 Order Directing Filing (i.e., whether or not a certificate of convenience and necessity is required in this case) is not as easy as explaining the Commission’s lack of jurisdiction over Noranda’s rates.  As discussed above, the Commission clearly lacks jurisdiction over the rates that are charged to Noranda, which needs no approval from the Commission in order to contract with Company.  Moreover, Company will have no legal obligation to serve Noranda apart from the terms of any contractual obligation.  Consequently, a certificate of convenience and necessity (certificate) is not required.  No law currently prevents Company from contracting to serve Noranda as it would contract to make any off-system sale.  

Whether the Commission may issue a certificate in this case pursuant to Section 393.170 RSMo 2000 is a separate question—an issue that is less clear.  The circumstances of Company’s proposed contract to serve Noranda do not appear to be within the intended purposes for a certificate.  No construction of any new distribution system is currently necessary to allow Company to serve Noranda.  Application, Paragraph 8, p. 4.  Therefore, avoiding the costs associated with the construction of redundant facilities would not be a justification for the exclusive franchise rights associated with such a certificate.

May the Company simply request a certificate in a situation where none is required?  Whether or not such a request is permissible, it does not seem to serve any purpose intended by Section 393.170 RSMo 2000.  Company is not legally obligated to serve Noranda within the proposed territory, except according to a valid contract.  Furthermore, it does not appear that any customer other than Noranda is likely to be located in this territory in the future.

Public Counsel suspects that Company is requesting a certificate partly because of a desire to limit its regulatory risk as it relates to the proposed contract.  However, no law currently grants the Commission authority to use Section 393.170 RSMo 2000 as a means to “pre-approve” the reasonableness of a proposed contract for electric service as it relates to any future rate case.  In fact, to the extent such an approval would be requested for the purpose of limiting the regulatory risk associated with the rates contained in the contract, it is not consistent with the law for Company to be seeking indirect Commission approval of rates for service to an “aluminum smelting facility”.
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